
Town of Belgrade 

Board of Selectpersons 
March 16, 2021 / 6:30 p.m. 

 

This meeting will be conducted online at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

A G E N D A 
 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Open Meeting 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of March 2, 2021, Selectboard minutes. 

3. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointments:  

1. Dan MacKenzie – Fire Chief. 

2. George Seel – Comprehensive Plan Implementation Oversight Committee 

(reappointment). 

3. Mary Vogel – Comprehensive Plan Implementation Oversight Committee 

(reappointment). 

4. Kathleen Wall – Comprehensive Plan Implementation Oversight Committee 

(reappointment). 

5. Ted Fontaine – Dams Committee.  

B. Discussion and consideration of update to Unified Investment Trust 

investment policy. 

C. Discussion and consideration of Transfer Station Committee recommendations 

regarding:  

1. Cement pad bids and funding. 

2. Update to Transfer Station punch card policy. 

3. Expansion of recycling program to include TerraCycle.  

D. Consideration of awarding the Tax Anticipation Note bid. 

E. Discussion and consideration of participating in Maine Municipal Association’s 

Workers Compensation Safety Incentive Program. 

F. Discussion and consideration of Spirit of America Award nominees.  

4. WARRANT 

5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) – Consultation with attorney 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

 

Town of Belgrade 

Board of Selectpersons 
March 2, 2021 / 6:30 p.m. 

 

This meeting was conducted online via Zoom and can be watched at 

https://youtu.be/B8jwa-7dx2g 

M I N U T E S 
 

Selectboard members present: Melanie Jewell, Ernst Merckens, Kathleen Wall, Dan 
Newman, Rick Damren 
In attendance: Town Manager Anthony Wilson, Carol Johnson, Bruce Galouch, 
Barbara Allen, Jack Sutton, Dick Bourne, Fred Perkins, Lenny Reich, Cory Alexander, 
Phil Sprague, Nicholas Alexander, Kate Damren, Transfer Station Director Ken Scheno, 
Town Clerk Mary Vogel, Recreation Director Lily Schubert, George Seel, Rhaeto Pfister, 
Norma Blazer, Linda Bacon, Mike Heino, Jay Bradshaw and Mac Stocco.  
 

Ms. Jewell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. Mr. 
Damren moved to open the meeting. Mr. Merckens seconded. Motion approved 5-0. 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT. Mrs. Wall delivered a statement about her three years of 

Selectboard service. Mr. Galouch suggested exploring a net energy billing 

agreement with a hydropower provider. The town manager will research that option.  

2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Feb. 16, 2021, Selectboard minutes. Mrs. Wall moved approval as 

presented. Mr. Damren seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  

B. Discussion and consideration of Center for All Seasons water filtration system. 

Mr. Newman moved to install an R-O system under the kitchen sink and place a 

water cooler near the disabled drinking fountain. The water will be retested for 

uranium in a month and six months. Ms. Jewell seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  

3. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Discussion and consideration of:  

1. Recommendation from first-responders memorial working group. Mr. 

Merckens moved to accept the recommendation to hang in the Town Office 

photos of Belgrade residents who volunteer as first-responders. Mr. Damren 

seconded. Motion approved 5-0. The group will begin work on a concept and 

details of a permanent memorial honoring first-responders past and present.  

2. Proposed flag policy. Ms. Jewell moved approval of the policy as presented. 

Mr. Merckens seconded. Motion approved 3-2, with Mr. Newman and Mr. 

Damren opposed.  

B. Discussion of possible changes to planning ordinance appeals. The town 

manager explained a proposal to streamline Planning Board appeals would have 

yielded an unintended consequence of disenfranchising appellants who could not 

afford legal counsel to represent them in Superior Court. Neither were any of the 

https://youtu.be/B8jwa-7dx2g


 

 

alternatives he conceived allowed under state law. He suggested as the Planning 

Board is rewriting the subdivision ordinance, it may want to require subdivision 

appeals be filed with the Board of Appeals; currently, the ordinance requires 

appeals be filed in Superior Court, again raising disenfranchisement concerns. 

The town manager will consult with the Maine Municipal Association about the 

legality of subdivision appeals being first heard by the Appeals Board.  

C. Discussion and consideration of interlocal agreements for Rome and Mount 

Vernon residents’ use of the Transfer Station. Mr. Damren moved approval of 

a Transfer Station Committee recommendation to sell stickers for trash bags 

rather than special stamped bags to Rome and Mount Vernon residents who 

wish to use the facility. The move will save costs and staff time. Ms. Jewell 

seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  

D. Consideration of 2021 Town Meeting warrant. Mr. Damren moved approval. 

Ms. Jewell seconded. Motion approved 4-0. Mrs. Wall was absent.  

E. Annual review of delegated authority to Town Manager to sign the weekly 

payroll. Mr. Damren moved approval. Mrs. Wall seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  

4. WARRANT. Mr. Newman moved approval of warrant 22 in the amount of 

$605,740.58. Mrs. Wall seconded. Motion approved 5-0.  

5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT. The Selectboard instructed the town manager to 

begin preparations for the Memorial Day ceremony on May 31.  

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(E) – Consultation with attorney 

The Town attorney was unavailable. The consultation will be rescheduled for March 

16.  

 

Mr. Merckens moved to adjourn. Mr. Newman seconded. Motion approved 5-0. The 

meeting was adjourned at 7:38 p.m. 



 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Fire chief appointment 

 

Fire Chief Dan MacKenzie’s five-year term ends this month. He is willing to serve 

another five-year term, but he asked that I solicit nominations from the Fire & 

Rescue Department’s membership in case someone else wished to serve. I 

received multiple nominations – all for Chief MacKenzie, and many of which 

contained effusive praise (including one that sought to make him chief for life).  

Under the attached policy, the town manager appoints the fire chief, to be 

confirmed by the Board of Selectpersons. Like his colleagues in the Fire 

Department, I enthusiastically endorse Dan MacKenzie’s continued service as 

Belgrade’s fire chief and ask that you confirm his reappointment.   













 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Unified Investment Trust investment policy 

 

The Budget Committee agreed to recommend to the Selectboard that it adopt the 

attached policy to guide the management of the Unified Investment Trust, the 

portfolio that financially supports Belgrade Central School and the Town’s 

cemeteries. The updated policy was crafted by Budget Committee member Tom 

Dowd, who borrowed bits of investment policies from other communities and 

organizations. Tom will be at the Selectboard meeting to explain more.  

Tom believes the Town’s current investment policy (see attached) works well for 

the investment of the Town’s operating accounts. However, he said a more 

robust policy that gives the portfolio manager greater direction in how the funds 

are to be invested is needed if the Town is to increase the return on its 

investments. The policy allows for discretion on the manager’s part, but notes a 

preferred mix of 65 percent equities (stocks) and 35 percent fixed income 

(bonds). As previously discussed, this proposed policy also allows for the Town 

to employ a private management firm to manage the Town’s investments.  

If the Selectboard approves this investment policy, we will craft a Request for 

Proposals for the Town’s investments management for presentation to the 

Budget Committee and then the Selectboard.  



TOWN OF BELGRADE 

Unified Investment Trust (UIT) Investment Policy 

1 
 

PURPOSE: 

The Town of Belgrade’s Unified Investment Trust (UIT) is the Town’s investment vehicle for funds that have 

been, or may in the future be, accepted by the Town for dedicated Town purposes. Examples of uses might include 

education, cemeteries, history, library, memorials, recreation, parks, lakes, open space, trails, etc. New additions 

to the UIT must be for defined purposes and accepted by a vote of the Town. A general sub-account may be added 

to receive funds for unnamed Town improvement purposes as determined by the Board of Selectpersons 

(Selectboard).   

RESPONSIBILITIES: 

The Town retains a professional registered Investment Advisor to manage the Unified Investment Trust assets 

in accordance with this policy statement. The Investment Advisor shall issue written monthly reports and 

written quarterly performance benchmark reports to the Selectboard; those reports will be shared with the 

Town’s Budget Committee. The Investment Advisor meets with the Selectboard at least annually to discuss 

investment returns, outlook and strategy.   

The Investment Advisor shall be registered, and in good standing, with the U.S. Securities and Exchange 

Commission (SEC). 

The Town will maintain an up-to-date list of authorized recipients for UIT fund distributions. During the first 

month of each fiscal year, the Selectboard will advise such recipients of the maximum amounts available for 

distribution based on 90 percent of each recipient’s UIT proportional results for the prior year, according to the 

custodian’s report of Dec. 31 for that year.  

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES: 

The UIT is to be invested in accordance with a Trustee’s standard of care and performance as contained in the 

Maine Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act. To meet the stated objectives, a portion of the 

UIT portfolio should be dedicated to common stocks in order to produce long-term appreciation of the UIT’s 

principal. The remaining portion should be committed to fixed income in order to provide liquidity and reduce 

total portfolio volatility. 

Unified Investment Trust funds shall be invested on a total return basis; that is, the aggregate return from capital 

appreciation and dividend and interest income. The primary investment objectives of the UIT are: 

1. To preserve the real (inflation-adjusted) value of the assets; and 

2. To pay a reasonable and stable current income to the various owners of the Endowment assets, which 

increases over time at least with the rate of inflation. 

 

Operating within the parameters set forth below, the UIT Investment Advisor shall have the discretion to 

allocate funds to stocks, bonds, or cash reserves with an eye to managing both risk and return.   

 



TOWN OF BELGRADE 

Unified Investment Trust (UIT) Investment Policy 

2 
 

Asset Allocation Guidelines. Investment management of the Fund shall be in accordance with the following 

broad asset allocation guidelines at market value:  

Asset Class Minimum Maximum Preferred 

Equities 55% 70% 65% 

Fixed Income 30% 45% 35% 
 

A. The portfolio may hold common stocks publicly traded on U.S. Exchanges, NASDAQ listed stocks and 

securities convertible into such stocks. Stock investments will be in companies with revenues of at least 

$500 million. Individual stocks will be limited to 5% of total stocks at cost and 10% at market. Industry 

exposure will be limited to 10% at cost and 20% at market. 

B. International stock mutual funds may be held to the extent they do not exceed 20% of the equity 

portfolio at market value. 

C. Bonds will be rated Investment Grade (BAA or BBB) or better by the major credit rating firms. Bond 

maturities will be limited to within 10 years. Individual bonds that are not backed by the full faith and 

credit of the U.S. government will be limited to 10% of total bonds at market value. Maximum exposure 

to a single industry will be 25%. Maximum maturities in any one year will be 20% of total bonds at 

market value. 

D. Prohibited assets and transactions include commodities, private placements, option contracts, derivative 

securities, selling short and use of margin credit. 

E. Investments in cash equivalents shall be limited to U.S. Treasury Bills, U.S. Government agency notes, 

commercial paper, repurchase agreements, or money market mutual funds whose investments are 

limited to the aforementioned cash equivalents.   

 

SPENDING POLICY: 

Annual fund earnings (dividends plus interest minus custodial charges) will be transferred to the Town or 

retained in the UIT as follows during the first quarter of each fiscal year, based on prior year’s proportional 

results and distributed as follows: 

• Up to 90% of earnings or less as requested by each authorized sub-account recipient. 

• Retain 10% or more of earnings permanently within the UIT. 

• Earnings are not transferrable between sub-accounts.   

 

EVALUATION AND MONITORING OF INVESTMENT ADVISOR: 

Performance benchmarks will be used to evaluate overall performance in each area of the portfolio allocation.  

The benchmark for Equities will be the S&P 500 Composite Index’s largest 500 companies, weighted by 

capitalization. The benchmark for Fixed Income will be the BofA/Merrill Lynch U.S. Corporate and 

Government 1-10 year, A-rated Bond Index. The total portfolio benchmark will be a 65% Equity-35% Fixed 

Income weighted average of these two components. The portfolio manager(s) will issue monthly results, 

quarterly written performance reports to the Selectboard, and respond to requests for further information via a 



TOWN OF BELGRADE 

Unified Investment Trust (UIT) Investment Policy 

3 
 

personal meeting, videoconferencing or further written communication. The UIT Investment Advisor will meet 

with the Selectboard at least annually to discuss investment returns, outlook and strategy. 

The Town Manager, Budget Committee and Treasurer shall establish a process of reviewing the entire portfolio 

and the selected institution(s) that is managing the portfolio on a regular basis, but not less than annually. 

Further, the Town shall request an annual audit of performance, as well as policies and procedures, by an 

independent external auditor.  

UNIFIED INVESTMENT TRUST INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION: 

The Town’s Unified Investment Trust investment policy shall be adopted by a vote of the Board of 

Selectpersons. This policy shall be reviewed annually by the Town Manager, the Budget Committee and 

Treasurer, and any modifications made thereto must be approved by the Board of Selectpersons. 

Adopted by the Board of Selectpersons at their regular Selectpersons’ meeting on March 16, 2021. 

 

________________________________ 

Melanie Jewell, Chair  

 

________________________________ 

Rick Damren, Vice Chair 

 

________________________________ 

Ernst Merckens 

 

________________________________ 

Kathleen Wall 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel Newman 









 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Transfer Station Committee recommendations 

 

We received two bids for the Transfer Station cement pad. (See attached.) The 

low bid was nearly $24,915 submitted by Bonneau & Son Excavation, which will 

perform the paving at the facility this summer. We do not currently have 

adequate funding in the Solid Waste capital reserve to pay for that project, but 

we do have two options:  

• We could call a special town meeting on June 8 (to coincide with the 
school budget election) to approve funds from the undesignated fund. This 
is the option the Transfer Station Committee recommends. 

• We could use the $10K budgeted to replace the office at the Transfer 
Station; that project would have to wait another year.  
 

If you wish to call a special election, we would need to approve an article prior to 

April 8. You could do that at your next meeting April 6 or tonight. Proposed 

language for the article would read: “To see if the Town will appropriate $25,000 

from the undesignated fund to construct a cement pad for storage containers at 

the Transfer Station, with any unexpended balance lapsing into the Solid Waste 

capital reserve. The balance of the undesignated fund on Dec. 31, 2020, was 

$3,530,027.”  

The committee further recommends: 

• Adopting the attached update to the Transfer Station punch card policy. 
The current policy mandates numbers on punch cards, used for 
inventorying, be matched to a number on a vehicle sticker. This requires 
users to replace their sticker every two years, prevents someone from 
using their card if they are not in the vehicle with the corresponding sticker 
number, and is impractical for the attendants. This update would end an 
unnecessarily complicated policy. 

• Adopting a cost-free expansion of the Town’s recycling program. 
TerraCycle, a private company, pays for the collection of post-
consumption products and packaging for recycling; that keeps them out of 
the landfill. TerraCycle partners with corporate brands to do this, 
specifically:  



 

2 

o Colgate for oral care products of any brand (ex. toothpaste tubes 
and empty dental floss containers). 

o Gillette for used disposable razors, blades and packaging. 
o PopSocket for cell phone cases and accessories.  
o Burt’s Bees for its product packaging.  

 
TerraCycle would provide some collection boxes. When they’re full, we 
would print a label and mail those to TerraCycle at the company’s 
expense. 
 
If the Selectboard approves of this, the Transfer Station Committee would 
like to have the authority to expand the products accepted moving 
forward. I would be sure to inform the Selectboard of any such expansion. 



















































Page 1 of 3 

U://files/.transfer station/2017 punch card system-final 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 

 

 
 

Rules forTransfer Station Punch Card Policys 

 

 

APPROVED:  April 4, 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MISSION STATEMENT 

 

“It shall be the mission of the Town of Belgrade to maintain historical perspective while   enhancing its 

regional, economic, educational, recreational and cultural significance; to provide a wide range of 

municipal services to make Belgrade a safe, prosperous and attractive town in which to live, work and 

vacation. We will strive to meet the needs of Belgrade by planning and partnering with local, county 

and state governments, while involving the citizens of Belgrade.” 



Page 2 of 3 

U://files/.transfer station/2017 punch card system-final 

The Punch Card System was developed to replace the two days when we allowed residential owners to 

drop off cost bearing items for free. The punch card allows cost-bearing items to be disposed of at any 

time during our the Transfer Station’s regular hours of operation.  The card is valid for two years 

(March 2017 – March 2019). The Town of Belgrade utilizes two Transfer Station stickers:  one green; 

one black and white with pre-printed numbers that correspond to a punch card.  A valid sticker must be 

placed on the rear driver’s side window for Transfer Station use.  Residential tax payers may obtain 

Transfer Station (TS) stickers at the Belgrade Town Office for every vehicle they register. however, 

they can have only one black and white numbered window sticker and punch card. 

 

Rules for Punch Cards: 
 

1. The vehicle on which they place the black and white sticker does not have to have the green sticker 

as well. The black and white numbered sticker is valid for regular TS visits for disposal of waste 

and recyclables. The tax payer should attach the numbered sticker to a vehicle they own and 

remove the green sticker.  It is not necessary to display both the black and white sticker and the 

green sticker for TS use. 

 

2.1. To redeem a “punch card item,”, numbered white and black window stickers must be attached 

to the vehicle and the matchingaA numbered punch card must be presented to an attendant.  If the 

punch card is not presented, a fee will be charged for disposal.  

 

3.2. Another person’s vehicle may be used to haul item(s) to the Transfer Station. H; however, the 

tax payer must be present and have their his/her numbered punch card in order to not beto avoid a 

charged.   

 

4.3. The tax payer is only allowed only one punch card for the property in which he/she lives. If a 

tax payer owns more than one residential property and/or rental units, the other residential 

property(s) are considered a commercial entity and are not entitled to receive additional punch 

cards.   

 

5.4. Punch card holders can use all the punches on the card at any given time during the two- year 

period. Once all punches on the card have been exhausted, a new card will NOT be issued until a 

new punch card cycle begins. Additional punch cards may be purchased for $75.00. Tax payers 

with rental properties and businesses in the Town of Belgrade are also eligible to purchase punch 

cards. 

 

6.5. If the punch card is lost, stolen, or destroyed, it will not be replaced.  A new punch card may be 

purchased for $75.00.  Additionally, if you a taxpayer replaces the his/her vehicle with the 

numbered black and white sticker, a new sticker must be issued with the same number written on it.  

 

7.6. If you have an item you believe should go into the swap-shop Tthere will still be a fee or punch 

used for the items placed in the “Too Good to Throw Away” station.   

 

 

PLEASE RECYCLE AT ALL TIMES 

IT SAVES THE ENVIRONMENT AND YOUR TAX DOLLARS 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

U://files/.transfer station/2017 punch card system-final 

 EFFECTIVE DATE  

 

The effective date of the revised Personnel Punch Card Policy is____________, 202117. 

 

BELGRADE SELECT BOARD 

 

 

 

________________________________   

Gary MahlerMelanie Jewell, Chair      

 

 

________________________________ 

Michael BarrettRick Damren, Vice Chair 

 

 

________________________________   

Richard DamrenKathi Wall       

 

 

________________________________   

Ernst Merckens 

 

 

________________________________ 

Ernest RiceDan Newman 



 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Tax anticipation note bids 

 

We received four bids for our annual tax anticipation note (TAN). The low bid is 

1.05% (compared to 1.79% in 2020) submitted by two banks: Bangor Savings 

Bank and Androscoggin Bank. Androscoggin Bank calculated its interest costs at 

one penny less than Bangor Savings -- $15,706.84 -- if we repay the loan on its 

maturity date of Dec. 17. We would, of course, seek to repay the loan at an 

accelerated pace, thus reducing interest costs. In 2020, we paid $10,000 less 

than the $27,462 in interest that represented the low bid. 

Attached are the bids. Lee Bragg, the Town’s bond counsel, advised that if 

bidders propose the same rate, “the Board might lean toward the bidder that the 

Town has worked more with in the past, or the bank that has treated the Town 

well in the past. It would be good if the Board could express a reason for its 

choice in terms such as those.” Androscoggin serves as our principal bank – the 

depository for all of the Town’s operating accounts. We have found its customer 

service to be extremely responsive, helpful and reliable. Our chief contact there, 

Jason Simcock, a vice president and director of government banking services, is 

a former Maine town manager who understands and appreciates our needs.  

We recommend awarding the bid to Androscoggin Bank.  

Also attached is the bond vote proposed by our legal counsel. Per his 

instructions, the motion should read: “I move to adopt the vote as presented 

regarding the $2 million-dollar tax anticipation note, based on Androscoggin 

Bank’s low bid and its ongoing, productive business relationship with the Town.” 











 

 

 

PROPOSED VOTE 

 

 

VOTED by the Select Board for the Town of Belgrade, Maine as follows: 

 

VOTED: (1) That under and pursuant to Title 30-A, Section 5771 of the Maine Revised 

Statutes, as amended and supplemented, there be and hereby is authorized the 

issuance of $2,000,000 principal amount of Tax Anticipation Note of the Town in 

anticipation of the receipt of taxes for the municipal fiscal year which commenced 

January 1, 2021, and ends December 31, 2021. 

 

 (2) Said Note shall be dated March 19, 2021, shall mature on                 

December 17, 2021, shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the 

Chair of the Select Board, shall bear interest at the rate of 1.05% per annum, shall 

be payable at Androscoggin Bank in Lewiston, Maine, and otherwise be in such 

form and bear such details as the signers may determine. 

 

 (3) That said Note is hereby sold and awarded to Androscoggin Bank. 

 

 (4) Said Note is hereby designated a qualified tax-exempt obligation of the 

Town for the 2021 calendar year pursuant to the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 

 

 (5) That all things heretofore done and all action heretofore taken by the Town, 

its municipal officers and agents in the authorization of said Note are hereby 

ratified, approved and confirmed and the Treasurer and Chair are each hereby 

authorized to take any and all action necessary or convenient to carry out the 

provisions of this voting, including delivering said Note against payment therefor. 

 



 
 

March 1, 2021 

 
 

Town of Belgrade 
Anthony Wilson, Town Manager  
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, Maine 04917 
 
RE: 2021 Tax Anticipation Note - $2,000,000.00 

Dear Mr. Wilson: 

Bangor Savings Bank is pleased to submit our proposal for a tax anticipation note in the amount of 
$2,000,000.00. The loan is subject to the following terms: 

 
1) The proposed fixed interest rate of 1.05% on a lump sum or as needed basis. 

 

2) One Note, representing the full amount of the obligation, to be issued on or about March 19, 2021. 
 

3) Interest is to be calculated based on a 360-day year. The total interest cost will be $15,706.85 
(this amount is subject to change based on the closing date and based on full advancement at 
closing). 

 

4) All interest and principal will be paid no later than December 17, 2021. The Note may be prepaid 
at any time without penalty. 

 
5) The issue of the Note is to be accompanied by an unqualified legal opinion of recognized Bond 

Counsel, that the Note has been duly authorized by the Town, is a legal and valid obligation of 
the Town, interest is exempt from taxation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended; and has been designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” of the Town. The cost 
of Bond Counsel will be borne by the Town. 

 
The commitment is subject to change if not accepted by March 24, 2021 and is subject to withdrawal, if 
there is discovered prior to loan disbursement, any adverse information relating to the Town’s financial 
condition. 

 
Please forward any correspondence relative to this request to my attention: 

 

Julie Cote 
Treasury & Payment Services 
Bangor Savings Bank 
24 Hamlin Way 
Bangor ME 04401 
Email: julie.cote@bangor.com or Fax: 207.941.2796 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist with the Town’s financial requirements and look forward to working 
with you. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 
Julie Cote, Vice President  
Treasury & Payment Services 

mailto:julie.cote@bangor.com


 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2, 2021 

 

Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Town of Belgrade 

990 Augusta Road 

Belgrade, ME  04917 

 

Re:  Invitation to Bid/ Tax Anticipation Note 2021 

 

Dear Anthony: 

 

Skowhegan Savings Bank is pleased to submit a fixed interest rate bid of 1.40% 

per annum on a lump sum basis or on an as needed basis for the Town’s $2,000,000 

borrowing to cover normal operating expenses in anticipation of its receipt of tax 

revenues during the 2021 calendar year.  Interest is to be calculated on actual days based 

on a 360-day year.  Assuming the full loan amount i.e. $2,000,000 is advanced on a lump 

sum basis on March 19, 2021 and repaid in full with interest on December 17, 2021, the 

interest cost to the Town would be $21,233.33.  No prepayment penalty will be assessed 

should the Note be paid off before the scheduled maturity date.   

 

The Bank will require an unqualified legal opinion, prior to loan disbursement, 

attesting to the validity and due authorization of the Promissory Note issue and 

designating that the Promissory Note issue is a qualified tax-exempt obligation.  It is 

expected that the Town will be responsible for the cost of this opinion. 

 

Thank you for this opportunity to provide financing for the Town of Belgrade. 

 

Regards, 

 
Tim Michalak 

Vice President, Commercial Loan Officer 



 
 

 

March 10, 2021 

 

Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Town of Belgrade 

990 Augusta Road 

Belgrade, ME 04917 

 

Dear Mr. Wilson: 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to bid on your request for tax-exempt municipal funds for the Town of 

Belgrade in an amount not to exceed Two Million and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000.00), for the purpose of 

financing the government activities and obligations of the Town in anticipation of funds to be raised by 

taxation in this fiscal year.  This bid is submitted as per your request for proposal specifications.  Camden 

National Bank (the "Bank") is pleased to offer this Note subject to the following conditions: 

 

1)  ISSUER:  Town of Belgrade 

 

2)  ISSUE DATE:  The note will be issued on or about March 19, 2021 

 

3)  DENOMINATION OF NOTES:  One note in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000 will be issued on 

either a “lump sum” or “as-needed” basis. 

 

4)  MATURITY DATE:   on or before December 17, 2021 

 

5)  INTEREST RATE:   

Option A (Lump Sum): 1.84% per annum, computed on the basis of the actual number of days 

outstanding based on a 360 day year.  Interest expense is calculated to be $27,906.67 assuming 

full disbursement on March 10, 2021 and remaining fully disbursed until the proposed maturity 

date of December 17, 2021. 

 

Option B (As needed): 1.84% per annum, computed on the basis of the actual number of days 

outstanding based on a 360 day year.  Interest expense is calculated to be $27,906.67 assuming 

full disbursement on or after March 10, 2021 and remaining fully disbursed until the proposed 

maturity date of December 17, 2021. 

 

6) REPAYMENT TERMS:  All principal plus interest to be paid at the maturity date of December 17, 2021.   

 

7)  PREPAYMENT PROVISION AND FEES:  The note may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The 

Bank assesses no fees associated with the loan closing.  



Town of Belgrade 

Page 2 

March 10, 2021 

 

8)  LEGAL OPINION:  This bid is subject to a legal opinion from bond counsel acceptable to the Bank, the 

cost of which will be borne by the Town of Belgrade.  The opinion must include a statement that the note 

represents a valid and binding obligation of the issuer and further that the note is a "bank qualified and 

designated tax exempt obligation" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended.  The issuer's counsel will be responsible for preparing the required loan documents 

and filing the necessary forms with the Internal Revenue Service. 

 

9)  ADDITIONAL PROVISION:  It is a condition of this commitment that none of the proceeds shall be used 

or invested in any manner such as to result in the loss of exemption from Federal income taxation of 

interest earned on this obligation. If this condition is violated by the issuer, the actions of any of its officers, 

agents, or employees, said issuer shall be liable to any holder of this obligation for all income tax liability 

incurred by said holder as a result of said condition broken, and in addition, all obligations under this Note 

shall become immediately due and payable at the option of the holder.  All acts, conditions and formalities 

essential to the validity of said obligation have been performed and compiled with as required by law, and 

the total indebtedness of the issuer is within the legal debt limit prescribed by law. 

                                                

10)  CONFIRMATIONS:  The Town of Belgrade must confirm in writing that: 

-The Town of Belgrade will comply with all of the Tax Reform Act of 1986, as amended, including all 

provisions relating to arbitrage and rebate. 

 

This commitment shall expire if it is not accepted in writing by March 29, 2021 and may be withdrawn if any 

adverse information relating to the issuer's affairs is discovered prior to closing. 

 

Should you have any questions regarding this proposal or require additional information, please contact 

me at 207-588-8401 or by email at jclaveau@camdennational.com.  Thank you for considering Camden 

National Bank for the Town’s financial needs.   

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

       

Jean Claveau 

Vice President, Commercial Banking Officer 

 

mailto:jclaveau@camdennational.com


 

 

INVITATION TO BID 

TOWN OF BELGRADE 

TAX ANTICIPATION NOTE 

 

 

 The Town of Belgrade (the "Town") invites bids to provide the Town with a tax 

anticipation loan in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.  It is anticipated that the Tax 

Anticipation Note will be dated on or about March 19, 2021.  Principal and interest on the 

note will be repaid on or before December 17, 2021. 

 

 The Town requests that bids be submitted for either, or both, of the following options 

for its consideration: 

 

 Option 1 (as needed):  Funds to be drawn as and when needed. 

 

 Option 2 (lump sum):  Funds to be drawn in a lump sum on the day of closing. 

 

 Interested banks must submit sealed bids by 12:00 p.m. on Wednesday,         

March 10, 2021.  Each bid should be submitted to Anthony Wilson, Town Manager,           

990 Augusta Road, Belgrade, Maine 04917, in a sealed envelope marked "Bid for Tax 

Anticipation Note", OR by email to townmanager@townofbelgrade.com with the subject line 

indicating "Bid for $2,000,000 Tax Anticipation Note”.  Bids will be considered by the Select 

Board at its Zoom meeting (https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984) convening at 6:30 p.m. 

on Tuesday, March 16, 2021.  Information regarding the Town’s finances can be obtained by 

calling the Town during regular business hours at (207) 495-2258. 

 

 Each bid must include an estimated amortization schedule.  In the case of a bid under 

Option 1, the schedule should be based on the assumption that all funds will be drawn at 

closing.  Bids must also disclose the amount of any fees, premium or other charges relating to 

the borrowing.  Bids must permit the Town to prepay the note without penalty at the election 

of the Town.  Bids shall remain firm for acceptance by the Town for 14 days from the 

submission deadline. 

 

The Town has engaged Lee Bragg of the firm of Bernstein, Shur, Sawyer & Nelson to 

act as Bond Counsel in connection with this borrowing.  All bids shall be subject to receipt of 

an unqualified opinion from Bond Counsel at the time of the closing.  The Town will certify 

that the debt is a qualified tax-exempt obligation within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(B) 

of the Internal Revenue Code. 

 

 The Town reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids, to waive any informality 

in the bids and to exercise its judgment in evaluating the bids.  The decision of the Select 

Board on these matters shall be final and conclusive. 

 

 

 

mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

 

DISTRIBUTION LIST 

 

 

John Simko, Vice President 

Androscoggin Bank 

P.O. Box 1407 

Lewiston, ME  04243-1407 

jsimko@androscogginbank.com  

 

Danielle Ahern, Vice President 

Bangor Savings Bank 
24 Hamlin Way 

Bangor, ME 04401 

danielle.ahern@bangor.com 

 

Nathan R. Cotnoir, Vice President 

Camden National Bank 

21 Armory Street 

Augusta, ME 04330 

ncotnoir@camdennational.com 

 

Brent Hall, Vice President 

Kennebec Savings Bank 

150 State Street 

Augusta, ME 04330 

bhall@kennebecsavings.com 

 
Steven P. St. Pierre, Vice President 
KeyBank N.A. 
774 Main Street 
Presque Isle, ME 04769 
steven_p_st_pierre@keybank.com 

 

Steve Thomas, Senior Commercial Lender 

Skowhegan Savings Bank 

P.O. Box 250 

Skowhegan, Maine 04976 

sthomas@skowhegansavings.com  

 

 

 

 

mailto:jsimko@androscogginbank.com
mailto:john.moore@bangor.com
mailto:ncotnoir@camdennational.com
mailto:bhall@kennebecsavings.com
mailto:steven_p_st_pierre@keybank.com
mailto:sthomas@skowhegansavings.com


 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Workers compensation safety incentive program 

 

Attached is information regarding the Maine Municipal Association’s workers 

compensation safety incentive program. In short, this program seeks to reduce 

workplace injuries and improve safety; successful participation in the program 

can reduce the Town’s workers compensation insurance premiums by up to 10 

percent. Savings in the program’s first tier are 5 percent, which equates to 

$2,220. The tiered checklist of program activities is also attached.  

The first step in tier one is approval by the elected board of the attached form 

resolving the Town to participate in the program.  

 



WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND 

    RESOLVE FORM 

 
Ed. 01/01/2020     

MMA WORKERS’ COMPENSATION SAFETY INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

RESOLVE FORM 

 

WHEREAS,  the                                                                                                      is a member              

of the Maine Municipal Association Workers’ Compensation Fund (hereinafter “WC Fund”); 

and 

WHEREAS,  Maine Municipal Association (hereinafter “MMA”) provides risk management services and 

workers’ compensation coverage; and 

WHEREAS,  MMA developed the Workers’ Compensation Safety Incentive Program (hereinafter “the 

Program”) to help reduce the incidents and impact of workplace injuries by implementing 

WC claim best practices; and 

WHEREAS,  MMA will provide necessary written program information, and offer assistance to 

participants; and 

WHEREAS,  WC Fund members that participate in the Program and complete the required activities, 

will have the opportunity to earn a credit to their annual contribution; and 

WHEREAS,  the                                                                                                      is committed             

to providing a safe environment for its employees, citizens, and visiting public; and 

WHEREAS,  the Program will help enhance such an environment and promote a self‐sustaining culture 

of safety with participating members, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE  ________________________________________________     

to elect to participate in the MMA Workers’ Compensation Safety Incentive Program. 

 

DATED THIS ________ DAY OF ____________________, 20____ 

ATTEST by Governing Board (signatures or e‐signatures): 

 ______________________________________     ____________________________________  

 ______________________________________     ____________________________________  

 ______________________________________     ____________________________________  

 ______________________________________     ____________________________________  

 ______________________________________     ____________________________________  



3/3/2021 Maine Municipal Association > Insurance Services > Risk Management Services > WCSIP

https://memun.org/Insurance-Services/Risk-Management-Services/WCSIP 1/1

Workers' Compensation Safety Incentive Program -
Introduction
Maine Municipal Association Risk Management Services will continue a program to work in
partnership with our Workers’ Compensation Fund members to improve workplace safety
and the member's workers’ compensation experience.  The goals of this program are to:

Reduce the incidence of injury and illness throughout the operations
Improve overall safety in the work environment
Maintain lines of communication with all employees
Protect members’ assets
Promote a self‐sustaining safety culture
Utilize best practices claim management
Provide financial incentives which reward our partnership toward safety

Participation in the program is on a voluntary basis and eligible credits will be applied
effective January 1, 2022. These credits will only be added at the next renewal (no mid‐term
adjustments will be made). Each member must elect to be part of the program by sending us
the Acknowledgement Form on or before April 1, 2021, the Resolve Form on or before June
1, 2021, and the Data Verification Form on or before September 1, 2021. The Risk
Management Services team will work with the member to help achieve its safety goals.

Each qualifying member may receive an incentive credit up to 10%. The program is tiered
into three levels based on documented performance.  The tiers and associated credits are:

Tier I....................... 5%
Tier II.................... 7.5%
Tier III.................... 10%

The application of a tier credit will not reduce the annual contribution below the minimum
contribution level.  However, for those members affected by the minimum contribution level
(currently $500 or less) they will receive additional consideration as part of a safety
enhancement grant application.

WCSIP Program
Introduction
Overview
Criteria

Forms
Acknowledgment
Resolve
Verification
Facility Survey

Plans
Personal Protection
Equipment
Slip, Trip & Fall
Lifting
Ergo
Incident Review
Safety Committee
Return to Work

Helpful Links
MDOL Directives
WCB Preferred
Providers
MMA Online University

LoginRegister

https://memun.org/
https://memun.org/Insurance-Services/Risk-Management-Services/WCSIP
https://memun.org/Insurance-Services/Risk-Management-Services/WCSIP/WCSIP-Overview
https://memun.org/Insurance-Services/Risk-Management-Services/WCSIP/WCSIP-Criteria
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13429
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13430
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13431
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13434
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13420
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13421
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13422
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13423
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13424
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13425
https://memun.org/Documents?Command=Core_Download&EntryId=13428
https://www.maine.gov/labor/workplace_safety/publicsector.shtml
https://www.maine.gov/bhr/owc/providers
https://firstnetcampus.com/MMA2/entities/MMA/logon.htm
https://memun.org/Login?returnurl=%2fInsurance-Services%2fRisk-Management-Services%2fWCSIP
https://memun.org/Register?returnurl=https%3a%2f%2fmemun.org%2fInsurance-Services%2fRisk-Management-Services%2fWCSIP


WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND 

DATA VERIFICATION FORM 

Ed. 01/01/2020

Member’s Name:  ______________________________________________________________________________ 

Verification Questions  TIER l  TIER ll  TIER III 

Resolve adopted and submi ed to MMA 

All departments meet MDOL compliance directive requirements 

Agrees to respond MMA correc ve ac on recommenda ons within 30 days 

A Personal Protec ve Equipment safety plan is implemented for all required department 

Annual administrative review of safety policies is documented 

Key personnel assigned safety responsibili es 

A process to communicate safety concerns to all employees is in place 

Leadership is aware of and reviews accidents 

A li ing and back safety policy is in place 

An office ergonomics safety policy is in place 

A safety commi ee holds mee ngs at least quarterly and minutes are documented  

Incident reviews (i.e. accidents, near misses) are conducted to find appropriate root 
cause(s) of reported occurrences. Corrective recommendations are implemented

Facility and equipment self-inspections are completed annually and documented 

Preferred providers are used  

Employee training is documented 

A wri en incident review policy is in place  

A wellness program or similar alterna ve is offered to employees 

A return‐to‐work policy (light‐duty) for all departments is in place  

Leadership a ends/par cipates in Safety Commi ee mee ngs, trainings and other safety 
events 

E‐Signature: 

Title: 

Date: 

 RETURN TO:    WCSIP@memun.org   or fax to (207)624‐0127

Please place a check in all boxes that apply to your organization:

A slip trip and fall safety policy is in place



 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Spirit of America awards 

 

Three nominations for the Spirit of America award were made prior to the March 

1 deadline. They are attached. 











 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: March 16, 2021 

Re: Town Manager’s report 

In a pair of emails to you dated March 4-5, I provided you some information 

regarding installing solar arrays at the Town Office, including the payback period 

and the rate of return, and about RSU 18’s hydroelectric provider. Titan Energy is 

willing to provide us a rolling three-year solar net energy billing agreement with 

a 90-day buyout clause. Would you like me to invite them to give you a 

presentation April 6?  

The community volunteer who, at her cost, has planted colorful flowers in the 

planters on the painted Belgrade signs at the town limits and at the Center for All 

Seasons will not be available this year to do that. The flowers do help brighten 

the town’s entryways. Is this something you would like to see continued? If so, 

would you prefer the Town take it on or that we solicit a volunteer?  

Inspired by the discussion of honoring our first-responders, three citizens 

stepped forward to contribute a combined $450 to underwrite costs associated 

with the Town Office photos. Anything not spent on that effort will be reserved for 

the permanent memorial. Also, Kate Damren called my attention to a Lowe’s 

program that will award grants to 100 community projects. I filled out the 

application for the first-responders memorial. *fingers crossed* 

As a reminder, I will be taking a week’s vacation the last week of the month.  


















	1 Agenda March 16, 2021
	2 March 2, 2021, Selectboard minutes
	3 fire chief memo
	3a fire chief appointment
	4 seel comp plan application_Redacted
	5 vogel comp plan committee_Redacted
	6 wall comp plan application_Redacted
	7 fontaine dams committee app_Redacted
	8 investment policy memo
	9 UITInvestmenttPolicyBelgradeDRAFT20210225
	10 investment policy
	11 transfer station memo
	12 bonneau bid
	13 mhc bid
	14 cement pad RFP
	concrete pad RFP

	15 2017 punch card system-final (003) edit
	16 TAN memo
	17 TAN Androscoggin
	18 Proposed TAN Vote
	19  TAN Bangor
	20 Skowhegan TAN Bid Letter
	21 TAN Camden
	22 TAN Bid Solicitation
	23 TAN bid Distribution List
	24 workers comp memo
	25 WC resolve form
	26 Maine Municipal Association _ Insurance Services _ Risk Management Services _ WCSIP
	27 Item 14 - Verification
	28 spirit of america memo
	29 borque nomination
	30 fulling nomination
	31 library nomination
	32 town manager report 3-16
	33 warrant 30

	Member's Name 2: Town of Belgrade
	Member's Name 3: Town of Belgrade Board of Selectpersons
	DATED:   16th
	Month:  March
	Two Digit Year: 21
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 1: 
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 2: 
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 3: 
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 4: 
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 5: 
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 6: Melanie Jewell, Chair
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 7: Rick Damren, Vice Chair
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 8: Ernst Merckens
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 9: Kathleen Wall
	ATTEST by Governing Board signatures or esignatures 10: Dan Newman
	Member's Name: Town of Belgrade
	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	Check Box6: Off
	Check Box7: Off
	Check Box8: Off
	Check Box9: Off
	Check Box10: Off
	Check Box11: Off
	Check Box12: Off
	Check Box13: Off
	Check Box14: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box17: Off
	Check Box18: Off
	Check Box19: Off
	Check Box20: Off
	E-Signature: 
	Title: 
	Date: 
	Print: 


